
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
February 19, 2013 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update  
 
(b) Council Committee Updates 
 
(c) Update on Police Station 
 
(d) Update on train quiet zones and idling train parking schedule  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
16. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following Special Amusement 

license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
Columbus Club, Inc.      Bruce Talbot, G.K. 
D/B/A: Knights of Columbus, Sekenger Council #1947 
2 Columbus Drive 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. The Town Council will consider options relative to the Village Review Zone 

amendments, and will take any appropriate action.   
ACTION 

 



2 
 

18. The Town Council will consider designating additional “Drug Free Safe Zones” for the 
Perryman Village housing complex and the McKeen Landing Park Area, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
19. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for March 4, 2013, for the 

purpose of designating a tax increment financing district at Brunswick Landing, and will 
take any appropriate action.   (Councilor Tucker and Councilor Richardson) 

ACTION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of February 4, 2013 
(b) Approval of request for use of mall by Pejepscot Historical Society 
(c) Approval of CIP Policy 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 

 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

February 19, 2013 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update:  Manager Brown will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted 
online, but are not included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(b) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(c) Update on Police Station:  Councilor Perreault requested this item to receive an update on 

this project.  Copies of information from Ledgewood regarding change orders and the 
project schedule are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  No motion required. 

 
(d) Update on train quiet zones and idling train parking schedule:  Councilor Perreault 

requested this item to receive an update on these train issues.  Copies of memos from 
Manager Brown and a letter from Pan Am Railways are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  No motion required. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
16. This item is the required public hearing on this renewal Special Amusement license.  The 

Knights of Columbus are requesting to have functions including weddings, dances and 
other similar events.  Copies of the public hearing notice and the application are included 
in your packet.  
 
Suggested motion:   
Motion to approve a Special Amusement license for Knights of Columbus located at 2 
Columbus Drive. 

  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. This item is for the Council to discuss options regarding possible changes to the Village 

Review Zone ordinance.  The Planning Board reviewed five options regarding this zone.  
The options are laid out in a memo from the Planning Department.  The preferred 



4 
 

alternative chosen by the Planning Board and Village Review Board is option #2, which 
keeps VRB substantive jurisdiction as is and expands the geographic jurisdiction as 
recommended by the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.   At this point, it is the Council’s 
opportunity to weigh in on the different options.  Copies of memos from Manager Brown 
and the Planning Department and sample ordinances from other communities, per 
Councilor Favreau’s request, are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:   
Staff is not providing a recommended motion since there are five options to consider. 

 
18. This item is to add the Perryman Village housing complex to the list of designated “Drug 

Free Safe Zones.”  Additional locations were added last November, with the propsed 
location to be included, but the Council did not feel comfortable that time including the 
Village since there was no letter of support from the Housing Authority.  A letter had been 
prepared by John Hodge, the Executive Director, last June making a request to make this 
location a drug free zone, but had not been included in the November Council packet.  
Recently Mr. Hodge met with the Town Manager and requested this action be taken.  The 
recreation properties at McKeen Street Landing will also be included since the Town now 
owns them.  A copy of the letter of request from the Housing Authority is included in your 
packet.   

 
Suggested motion:   
Motion to have the Police take the necessary steps to designate the following locations as 
“Drug Free Safe Zones:” Perryman Village Housing complex and Town owned 
properties at the McKeen Landing Park Area. 

 
19. This item, sponsored by Councilor Tucker and Councilor Richardson, is to set a public 

hearing to re-designate the MRRA TIF Districts for the Executive Airport area and 
Brunswick Landing Municipal Development District.  The districts are very similar to 
last year’s proposal, except the area of the Molnlycke TIF district has been removed.  
Copies of the applications for the two districts are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:   
Motion to set a public hearing for March 4, 2013, for the purpose of designating tax 
increment financing districts at Brunswick Landing. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of February 4, 2013: A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet. 

(b) Approval of request for use of mall by Pejepscot Historical Society:  This request is 
for approval to use the mall to hold their Civil War Sesquicentennial from August 9 
to 11, 2013.  The approval is under Chapter 10-26(14) of the ordinance.  This 
approval will also waive the fee.  This event has occurred in the past, but staff 
discovered that it should have been given to the Council for your approval since it is 
an overnight event.  Copies of the letter of request and application are included in 
your packet. 



5 
 

(c) Approval of CIP Policy:  This policy was discussed at your recent CIP workshop and 
comes to the Council for your formal approval.  A copy of the policy is included in 
your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2013 05:47    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,635,000   1,635,000.00   1,997,250.00            .00            .00    -362,250.00  122.2%

 
TOTAL Fill                       1,635,000   1,635,000.00   1,997,250.00            .00            .00    -362,250.00  122.2%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      443,895     443,895.00     276,226.49      30,154.23         325.00     167,343.51   62.3%
11100 Finance Department      676,347     676,347.00     356,104.30      50,564.60         357.91     319,884.79   52.7%
11150 Technology Services Dept      309,447     309,447.00     199,024.39      15,849.71      20,022.02      90,400.59   70.8%
11200 Municipal Officers      127,615     127,615.00      73,162.99      22,196.54            .00      54,452.01   57.3%
11220 Municipal Building      185,178     185,178.00      82,677.96      14,350.08         847.00     101,653.04   45.1%
11230 Risk Management      429,050     429,050.00     295,314.68     146,596.26      56,382.00      77,353.32   82.0%
11240 Employee benefits            0            .00     -86,171.71         794.85            .00      86,171.71  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       66,983      66,983.00      35,972.90       4,713.13       2,177.00      28,833.10   57.0%
11300 Assessing      279,406     279,406.00     138,964.38      18,241.92       6,596.22     133,845.40   52.1%
11400 Codes Enforcement            0            .00           8.33            .00            .00          -8.33  100.0%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      352,539     352,539.00     199,340.24      25,380.01            .00     153,198.76   56.5%
11900 Planning Department      443,416     443,416.00     217,741.47      30,051.47            .00     225,674.53   49.1%
11950 Economic Development Dept       94,751      94,751.00      57,831.60       7,055.79            .00      36,919.40   61.0%

 
TOTAL General Government         3,408,627   3,408,627.00   1,846,198.02     365,948.59      86,707.15   1,475,721.83   56.7%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    2,944,930   2,944,930.00   1,619,889.13     227,240.24      20,195.75   1,304,845.12   55.7%
12200 Police Department    3,763,288   3,763,288.00   1,969,632.14     279,716.54     134,833.59   1,658,822.27   55.9%
12210 Police Special Detail            0            .00      14,692.49       2,048.54            .00     -14,692.49  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatc      715,702     715,702.00     392,787.17      56,295.14            .00     322,914.83   54.9%
12310 Streetlights      190,000     190,000.00     105,747.37      16,667.52            .00      84,252.63   55.7%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600.00      11,129.83         502.29            .00      20,470.17   35.2%
12330 Hydrants      407,770     407,770.00     200,150.85     101,226.95            .00     207,619.15   49.1%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedne        2,000       2,000.00         800.00         800.00            .00       1,200.00   40.0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety              8,055,290   8,055,290.00   4,314,828.98     684,497.22     155,029.34   3,585,431.68   55.5%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2013 05:47    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administratio      412,725     412,725.00     220,578.75      30,179.87       2,200.00     189,946.25   54.0%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,627,417   1,627,417.00     706,153.11     157,190.93      73,861.98     847,401.91   47.9%
13120 PW Winter Maintenance            0            .00            .00     -28,066.43            .00            .00     .0%
13130 Refuse Collection      583,765     583,765.00     254,782.48      41,384.10     190,674.50     138,308.02   76.3%
13140 Recycling      273,792     273,792.00     140,421.84      21,653.50     154,775.50     -21,405.34  107.8%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,623     724,623.00     414,448.98      85,525.14      28,928.58     281,245.44   61.2%

 
TOTAL Public Works               3,622,322   3,622,322.00   1,736,385.16     307,867.11     450,440.56   1,435,496.28   60.4%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      166,695     166,695.00      87,175.24      15,077.00       2,088.81      77,430.95   53.5%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,744       2,744.00       1,379.77            .00            .00       1,364.23   50.3%

 
TOTAL Human Services               169,439     169,439.00      88,555.01      15,077.00       2,088.81      78,795.18   53.5%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   33,491,029  33,491,029.00  16,423,531.80   2,155,125.58            .00  17,067,497.20   49.0%

 
TOTAL Education                 33,491,029  33,491,029.00  16,423,531.80   2,155,125.58            .00  17,067,497.20   49.0%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      417,915     417,915.00     224,445.73      32,173.34            .00     193,469.27   53.7%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      668,672     668,672.00     374,661.07      40,947.58      12,002.36     282,008.57   57.8%
15300 Teen Center        5,000       5,000.00       5,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus       75,000      75,000.00      75,607.18            .00            .00        -607.18  100.8%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,192,405   1,192,405.00     686,819.60      98,117.08            .00     505,585.40   57.6%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture     2,358,992   2,358,992.00   1,366,533.58     171,238.00      12,002.36     980,456.06   58.4%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental          1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2013 05:47    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
70       Unclassified                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      161,558     161,558.00     128,685.66          10.83            .00      32,872.34   79.7%
17010 Additional School Assistan       10,000      10,000.00      10,000.00      10,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000.00         750.00            .00            .00       2,250.00   25.0%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       35,000      35,000.00            .00            .00            .00      35,000.00     .0%
17051 Longfellow School Building            0            .00      45,229.80      10,200.00      42,722.05     -87,951.85  100.0%
17052 School Master Plan            0            .00      65,219.97      18,599.86            .00     -65,219.97  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                 209,558     209,558.00     249,885.43      38,810.69      42,722.05     -83,049.48  139.6%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18010 2003 High School Refunding            0            .00     -13,737.50            .00            .00      13,737.50  100.0%
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      268,000     268,000.00     236,000.00            .00            .00      32,000.00   88.1%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      274,010     274,010.00     244,465.00     -79,015.00            .00      29,545.00   89.2%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bon            0            .00    -250,328.14            .00            .00     250,328.14  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                 542,010     542,010.00     216,399.36     -79,015.00            .00     325,610.64   39.9%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   54,675,531  54,675,531.00  29,422,831.34   3,659,549.19     748,990.27  24,503,709.39   55.2%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2013 10:03    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   32,225,201  32,225,201.00  32,770,605.49    -407,554.94                   -545,404.49  101.7% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000.00            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000.00     -21,096.32         -75.78                    -53,903.68   28.1% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       76,000      76,000.00      39,944.95       3,673.10                     36,055.05   52.6% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       13,000      13,000.00      12,932.95         816.50                         67.05   99.5% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev            0            .00      15,078.55            .00                    -15,078.55  100.0% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      260,000     260,000.00     136,812.94       3,139.89                    123,187.06   52.6% 
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      134,838     134,838.00     163,112.00            .00                    -28,274.00  121.0% 
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      384,439     384,439.00     293,057.00            .00                     91,382.00   76.2% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj       -4,842      -4,842.00            .00            .00                     -4,842.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,550,000   2,550,000.00   1,548,222.72     215,159.92                  1,001,777.28   60.7% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000.00       3,697.40         533.90                     21,302.60   14.8% 
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane            0            .00       1,060.79       1,060.79                     -1,060.79  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                     35,388,636  35,388,636.00  34,963,428.47    -183,246.62                    425,207.53   98.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   35,388,636  35,388,636.00  34,963,428.47    -183,246.62                    425,207.53

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000.00       3,518.95         693.95                      4,481.05   44.0% 
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0            .00         189.50            .00                       -189.50  100.0% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        1,500       1,500.00       1,392.00         324.00                        108.00   92.8% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      100,000     100,000.00      76,546.27       6,042.10                     23,453.73   76.5% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       27,000      27,000.00      29,829.69       7,123.44                     -2,829.69  110.5% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       12,000      12,000.00      10,785.00       1,245.00                      1,215.00   89.9% 
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0            .00          75.00            .00                        -75.00  100.0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,000       1,000.00         670.25         110.75                        329.75   67.0% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,302       2,302.00       2,182.00       1,202.00                        120.00   94.8% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       46,000      46,000.00      31,224.60       4,900.80                     14,775.40   67.9% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,230      24,230.00      11,655.00       6,140.00                     12,575.00   48.1% 
121611 42204  Victulars Licenses       22,875      22,875.00       2,450.00         125.00                     20,425.00   10.7% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       20,250      20,250.00         450.00            .00                     19,800.00    2.2% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,210       4,210.00       3,976.00       2,188.00                        234.00   94.4% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0            .00          21.85          18.95                        -21.85  100.0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       10,000      10,000.00      25,147.40         300.00                    -15,147.40  251.5% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits          900         900.00         250.00         120.00                        650.00   27.8% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600.00         775.75         230.75                       -175.75  129.3% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening          500         500.00          72.00            .00                        428.00   14.4% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=V8OymNADnX842YDXS8tc/SNrRcjWbkHPnwJN2yLPi7cBrUqg8dj14z6OWJ%2BE4vnl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=idILrf%2B8F8FzmJWZ7v0/%2B7RwEV7fm2rQDAD1w58gI5E4qDcs3yeIU63H%2BNT5m87N&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Dvc/Ob2rX/W8zXYkBBisOWswpHNIGSDRh2h7mPMpb5PL/PIKT/rBhdMdC%2B6FjVdm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MLdN6koL6E1%2BcTVqe2MIPJxdCN6QtmmG1vDRVPrvPVAma1F%2BcwRhonckYrr9j6ef&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OB9jpWBack1Wi3U7Px65bHhvZG7CnidmDYg7uXUDkBxPaCa6DGoSfqFXl526IesP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=snqrLqVIIyZabHxnnS1C5V8Q5vNg5mOdECUfww/Wsek14cFJNF5wW57HvANzlPR5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rcxGpLhKAUM0XwAG6mkGCWnrYd0u967l4LpoRMXjKW1xTP3jeLzQ18Ay50zjwM2O&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XxjXoKND%2BMhV/orTs6kZ5%2B7qzfoeftbQ0fB%2BAfaQxSJuAsldxJm5wNgxIs6tANd%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ciAx1yKCN5EZ/e%2ByvnFMqSA4j9HqQIrnAhfa0irpDwLBlMK1i1XaDHWkyhJBre7H&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QjuKMTiY%2BVCaoFe1Je//Mx03QL7CgxOyzECovjg3yX0XuKJEU%2BWPO20nTyH%2BA3u/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1MIPvNlt7TUIBoRK7iS2VBI04w55bo%2BA6rCxreojXrUlFXbSOxCPpzSx09/i3yev&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jBUdB6YJgkCSf/f2dfdhG/bDbzjzSB5QfCzf4jOc6HvSt2lQBXh%2BrxT1g0tyO9DG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GqAyubfJhkMCUCTfMUHDtlpjhrN55YtiDRlJih5TeC1BdRw0qqfFSnoG5NO8guqd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=i5RgxcbeWel4LIE%2BB8WcpeH5wATf4eHEmAhop5MYGjJc09HbMyMfBQ%2BQ5Xq5iGwy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xvL3UNqgvEMZnxUMkbci5njmjE3iC3s/CF/6vA6Ha2UPKhdpdfnZuWS5xnq8anl5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZjAj8roy9LfZ/UWvFC6yP%2BQswmNswfP73nQOlrnOXXuEYcQl112SY6vFmeon9Xe%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FVOtFO7m86zPls72CEYOdc6bEqEF09rkKeQnrbIvASowzLvPHlixvPsCgnelnSn2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JesnA7sryls9fSnK0VkguaqjnSJL849W9CFamIVeV5k3D3orh6MIdrhvaD2CPB/e&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9/uagGkhvEE7jl081tOa8vBgzK%2BZzqIkawlLsToLLXOldg5fFNQjU3VQVt9x7NKV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qTUtC74Al2zJnAQDPdWjhAcdk/ROc5sCsD2HluStsG%2BmW4O6goh6DwqU1N6KEXIX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dzBoznCkMxus51gb61r1W6pSJ4nRhFP9HxngKHejYE8ze%2BcD4a%2B0je%2BCI2c8Jhuc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eUFkkRkJccby2VN9VsL0uJeU5SdJNSAEz9t3TFHx5SBE2jWaNQhz5O0Mq7b5pvvt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9JbbZIyc75EWWVGkvWkKIH9Ai8m8BbV6Efce3pCICMF3Sbn/XoNsKpvHmp6HGbvp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=k19pEROUeqDW2PVzXEl%2B%2B/3jh99uBLaMqcyJAqVWascnrRmVeO3pc6q9G4jXCpn/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gFs71j95CQw52kwZABk/ddVRhGZ6%2BaNj2PyVhhQaDpgnSV1OBHKj82Slj6pRR12G&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ShHyTaOkS663ekyIdr/9wNqwtEgotJFs%2BHWdfWjGhqgUT8QsFJBvbQs778rf0zkJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5SaTCIQ2oV/GUdra3PA6LN8kiInmP4ToFJX/j5pqrDy526DOIZ2%2Bukp/4U880SX0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0%2BSXcLynYbMoRlaRyNvd5jOVuvQAPRA3R41Qg/yu0Fgh0jaAGSqKEYM%2BnS/LYslv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DWEsq5a76Xawyw0tFJLSKry%2BwytOWyz%2B1lIpIHnZr/DT5A8ETzeFALU0b/fIjutq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cKQuYG8xG3%2Bckpr9MOaJzgk4G5vemhk7vt0kYkLTn3HEDYNspuLQiqfz5QOf5DJk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LVPUhOnmH8lXSxqGJdyFfUGLua%2B33/pKdk74NJiXBGz5vsUAogeChx0Vlx7/uCQy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CGG8VE1VDoJYIC9LtxjtLKbsTYofS%2B88chgZsqn23rVlugTMgWAVNPFH4S9T2V3O&


 
 
 

02/01/2013 10:03    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

TOTAL Licenses & Fees              281,367     281,367.00     201,211.26      30,764.74                     80,155.74   71.5%
 

TOTAL REVENUES      281,367     281,367.00     201,211.26      30,764.74                     80,155.74
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant            0            .00       8,512.97       4,407.85                     -8,512.97  100.0% 
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant       20,000      20,000.00       5,417.50            .00                     14,582.50   27.1% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      215,000     215,000.00     104,272.00            .00                    110,728.00   48.5% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       35,000      35,000.00       7,510.96         624.06                     27,489.04   21.5% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       26,000      26,000.00       5,284.07            .00                     20,715.93   20.3% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,450,000   1,450,000.00     841,229.43     127,511.47                    608,770.57   58.0% 
131192 43105  Emergency Management        4,288       4,288.00            .00            .00                      4,288.00     .0% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,500       1,500.00       1,264.42       1,264.42                        235.58   84.3% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi   10,451,354  10,451,354.00   6,709,148.57     678,804.38                  3,742,205.43   64.2% 
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub       31,000      31,000.00      32,967.59            .00                     -1,967.59  106.3% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0            .00      92,911.62      16,299.41                    -92,911.62  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental         12,234,142  12,234,142.00   7,808,519.13     828,911.59                  4,425,622.87   63.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   12,234,142  12,234,142.00   7,808,519.13     828,911.59                  4,425,622.87

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000.00      28,745.00       3,589.00                     21,255.00   57.5% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500.00         589.00         121.00                        911.00   39.3% 
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0            .00         874.82         438.26                       -874.82  100.0% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      800,000     800,000.00     588,559.79      87,867.10                    211,440.21   73.6% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire          500         500.00       1,082.64            .00                       -582.64  216.5% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,500       3,500.00       1,800.00            .00                      1,700.00   51.4% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600.00       2,315.00         670.00                      1,285.00   64.3% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       77,424      77,424.00      77,424.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000.00      18,782.50       3,186.00                    -17,782.50 1878.3% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      135,000     135,000.00      83,492.83      10,609.00                     51,507.17   61.8% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000.00      14,550.68       1,814.68                     10,449.32   58.2% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      220,812     220,812.00     170,741.01     158,008.07                     50,070.99   77.3% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services       1,318,336   1,318,336.00     988,957.27     266,303.11                    329,378.73   75.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,318,336   1,318,336.00     988,957.27     266,303.11                    329,378.73

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,750       6,750.00         600.00            .00                      6,150.00    8.9% 

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=A8FjIbK3tdvipL7XORjVE3iJU/6QMM7FYKo/Zqt9k%2Bz%2BFeO9Zjygl/yU4R9WC1gb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PnsdixGjw8ODFYg8NVDXkXBz9e27l/pZr11D%2B2Z/78jMH8mcmlHJUj/CQt/5vhQV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x%2Bi21mP6ULR74GXlPEo4%2BvqPM4tnA6CV//wQWVp0JHyTxFWTWQiT2R6nGpzcPaxo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NvaFcTaajYlUyRTnI41NWEW8DN7KxBRWK/4nk68QWNUez62xjHdbWBVpQQC1fZVD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cO5bAR9U5RasU9FADLHe75/AftgwKpBLdA%2BD1uJZ2XF2aNwoFB71vlkWd73l0Nkk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UgbJCjm%2BOaFRwH8sd1TK6BA1vdrjjldPiqVqAgNqgLjvo0aSF9NNbA9OJCqTqKD1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sax854ZxgiMoQtzZso88YI0C4dCXAt1Htel/qTTcQU8Ib/rZjY1QdFUGXobHlggr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jT4qCP8TK8jYmyh6DLViSLpcNklauxz%2By/4tekY6BOXeoRuuNs8Ixu8qqwrT77to&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=m1E/5OtH2JO6Ahk8er1vK7CjfdRX9JfgluY05ZDa8phhTzYGP96ePFUI8jriL2nS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DF0oJAGDtu37mUOEFeBHnhjuRtXccuTbR3SE3LHBxHuQMqDTOsczSBCWPy5Q8hQ5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gj%2B5Y2ixkfqollXVCuhdOy1iiifM1sPMB5PSWgzAAt4qBS4ZkeZoBAxfzd0wLZLo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8ELO569nmkL/gT415AhJuKyzDD8G7ZYHRB4Jh93dc9C4kByLHPuL%2BbaWz0KAhWhF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UzeoGz43nj%2Byai2PC4XifDujKbFJc4/ccM5bfmfCXpVx7f6xfRxqX7OU04yYQNmo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nP0yZc1UOnQiL0xkl3dNW/wwpSd7zJvBVuXx6kwPjrXFx94mLeRc4vZOnt6QogFI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=l9cXwDIHG0evGe6n2utLtmSClJaGJzah%2BVAFX/LBqEVShhh7O1c2FaprkwVlMEbj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rnVjjF/jhwpRwVwonQnM8Ufue2fs530n%2Bb4EaayTtb0NwkSsv4g6%2BhuDvgmlJ%2BL%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=srVSiyi67VUQ8ZfPSjh5vcDZ%2Bxt41Fx5Ol/H74SeHjKfrK9NRB/E3FOXsoebUQ7x&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nFGapelv6iOss7eVOl58Gbr0PUuQFNWWQweZxv2yXAHere/FdStrOmApZ4H/w1wM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Olfi1XFES3SxSurnouXKZiQJsFrQNle%2B4DGJ6h6D7mYX0Fmi72q%2BBq6F7AxO%2BHvW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xOEBbO53LfCggncToGfzJ3WMcpgy5vAASu6Bq2tyU9ThlM4%2BHhEk1zCU0PTz%2BuWN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mbppaYbWBqsWE482rg%2Bbkou0t6qCjouEeNh4o/gzTJu/LOk/SGRyX/gdiPvQEpCg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Jz0RVP1imzaqqo6gG%2BMbwrJGNFCQ8s42XObQHLCdX6wHQasWQAer2eQ5dfKA2Pir&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=olHv8s9B49ohLJocl4ySrCpaTgpMM4Erc1dmWgk4V%2BNtP1N0AYYlCVJB172nkjLS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UjEjgtgNthvkfECvBRBQpBneqktqp6lbz2RsTr3vdC5EGTF1YMseXsLUy/VD2fMD&


 
 
 

02/01/2013 10:03    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        2,000       2,000.00         650.00            .00                      1,350.00   32.5% 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0            .00         200.00            .00                       -200.00  100.0% 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600.00         268.00         105.00                        332.00   44.7% 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets        6,000       6,000.00      10,752.00       1,080.00                     -4,752.00  179.2% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          500         500.00         425.00            .00                         75.00   85.0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300.00         -45.00            .00                        345.00   15.0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties             16,150      16,150.00      12,850.00       1,185.00                      3,300.00   79.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       16,150      16,150.00      12,850.00       1,185.00                      3,300.00

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned      100,000     100,000.00      11,742.86       1,727.38                     88,257.14   11.7% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned              100,000     100,000.00      11,742.86       1,727.38                     88,257.14   11.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      100,000     100,000.00      11,742.86       1,727.38                     88,257.14

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       75,000      75,000.00      75,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi       50,000      50,000.00      24,996.00       4,166.00                     25,004.00   50.0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000.00      15,208.50            .00                       -208.50  101.4% 

 
TOTAL Donations                    140,000     140,000.00     115,204.50       4,166.00                     24,795.50   82.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      140,000     140,000.00     115,204.50       4,166.00                     24,795.50

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000.00      10,479.81         110.09                     -9,479.81 1048.0% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty R            0            .00      10,039.00            .00                    -10,039.00  100.0% 
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0            .00       1,546.00         216.00                     -1,546.00  100.0% 
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0            .00      12,080.85       3,027.79                    -12,080.85  100.0% 
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0            .00         420.00            .00                       -420.00  100.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      200,000     200,000.00      63,648.52       9,000.00                    136,351.48   31.8% 
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0            .00         262.00            .00                       -262.00  100.0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,200       1,200.00         722.90          92.50                        477.10   60.2% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          200         200.00          79.00           1.00                        121.00   39.5% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      11,344.37          10.00                     -2,344.37  126.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0Bln4XOROQboaDfHOha3ATFJWETqCiGDpEe6Z1e5YKPnE11vGCepgMAZg5CL/Chv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=APiSEKRrUmTE7r0dQiHlLgnjBpEb1GAbKgV2JLHtOH1oV5Ok4%2B0ZWIBdt%2Bk9QmHr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5dJA1mk1ouwmmsLPHvfftCgRMeAndVi9zw%2Bm%2Bp7Egm6ipufEmfL0hhfBTeIlvNs%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5uMTkOttQFFp3UnsNUwynvs%2BFnYFnlYx0XrjJ6lVq9k7cYaO89qyDyey1TnHcX1M&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BSa55MRU0Zupdm03C195Xngiztxnpo3EnsCoJHNCqavNG1ML0d2JJzobQ7RXKtnG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QF8AAlMZCCa367vhfSqH5Ig9%2BsD3BcJiil/KkYWyu3lfUo1LtxkzIdiucHFfA8bC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XOV6Tgz%2BAVRVL4vtsZJpuqhflt6ZBLxwNerVscz%2BD7LBdQG6p/rzE8pp2EJPJpSk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=U8V3kqKZYTeI1YrvM06KB5EAiNemG35OxZWxg0mx7diPdCSwHss1Jn69UNP1EShm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aH9PinemHKvCqHoqKJANNl2k71t0eAJd4359LjfFFmMYnOdFH7s6gBi%2Bk%2Bznz9yu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CNpa2k364dfHzam%2BRO88Hz2LIxQ2WSIseXgAyR1mLc77zIsOCmKTtEUvIyj8vR15&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1ubk%2BUwky9fcberWUJ3Z2BkOEA5CLJXf8d4cAvuBI87IIFengpowQ0sslloSD8zt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wkK6GP77DjGOrwDA%2BLmYGKsImO5kMsXjtugzMxzVgLQcAwq%2BtU5%2BD7ccJUXmvQj8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zzGSEWM0KonAEr9jcBDzyTeLL4vVKEFq014mIrbunMtqwqc8c/3Rzsx4SoZbWgCy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DNs1Pj6h3nOUVBhqSPdTjUDzNhv2ubapJxmq/EVJ4QZHLXBJwIg%2BvOT8efMlOlqu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FOsy38Pr7EXtT0ZwTifkKqAnAfdM40konJ2n%2Bd3Ee6aN3s4G9iaefHlwXLJ8tA%2Bt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yaTFv2LV3oM0ZaKYD/uV6qEr1FWszQ9g6uwOw9qpBddJppz%2B6c2lnMuP1WqcJ0NS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ko2OxoQ%2BaQkYRbRGtJevj4lfgeo74HhN85JCja1AveUb/IxuWQuBknseukEXqY6O&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MCmUs/sx1N120dpSMmuuQ8G3RYdGstMfr1LDBmsyeggNwNAN/Ngmoc0o/Phnfxwc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qVqhag8GIrZ62qoASKdkMJg8vShfrIW1PgnOav70S5MGQbkCh0D8KCDUZGkVhSy6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FC1peBmY1NZaFNgENFnnOd9CQtY50maVWXI/InxdometFScXpRYnbgVatADoiZV5&


 
 
 

02/01/2013 10:03    |Town of Brunswick |PG     4
jhenze              |JANUARY 2013 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      11,773.04         769.06                     -2,773.04  130.8% 
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales       16,000      16,000.00            .00            .00                     16,000.00     .0% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0            .00        -845.15            .00                        845.15  100.0% 
194141 49000  Human Services Misc            0            .00           1.00            .00                         -1.00  100.0% 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0            .00       5,928.88            .00                     -5,928.88  100.0% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      174,500     174,500.00     170,749.37      26,991.32                      3,750.63   97.9% 
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0            .00       7,100.17         525.23                     -7,100.17  100.0% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      200,000     200,000.00     200,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Other                        610,900     610,900.00     505,329.76      40,742.99                    105,570.24   82.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      610,900     610,900.00     505,329.76      40,742.99                    105,570.24

 
GRAND TOTAL   50,089,531  50,089,531.00  44,607,243.25     990,554.19                  5,482,287.75   89.1%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bodzGa0wrcRNLRKJsIjeJskeM6rjJQUS1zIktF9xxnN2yEZRR/ySjUVKJREw6YwW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=G8g%2BRJiKUOA8fTuaKJWdbR1Fq4boZtFufbE1aGh9h9tc6r/fLROOpsr61cCW%2B8Ng&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=W9DJISsRMAmXvwihoGD6X/t9COVPvHL0u0xQdINIUuf0B5uuQ5ZFK1EpC7S9lZQ3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xSrTLnQ0j7I4Os64HhAcnKVOWYqDCC/LsV5mGKb9ZF3sbr2nbnsnF4bMuW0Lgq1g&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IGYzof2MA3movSJlKcvBR4tNtSVbyxBYWVsR5sMks8h4IYMzdm4%2BbrPXQbDHUk4K&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BcV73jHddoVa2YAm70ed1aUfRucxAusaHiujvGsrbEwH%2BRC1Fq0qJXFpYBp87ZLo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DU8b3NY%2BPIqLkNgRPNdaSHHoCZOZLquGTPef3wkkFC083FPJsM77ncWUG5WRbcUp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NglvNH4vUgJG6g8Um9Jo6T7r3kI72Tgn4ohyBqGth9thf701zzkwjRNt0PcIi1nT&


 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 











All Prime Contract Change Orders

# Revision Title CORs PCOs Designated Reviewer Amount Due Date Status Review Date

002 0 Change order #2
#009: Added rebar per ASI #6
#005: Ledge removal inside foundation
#003: Remove unsuitable soils

#009: Added rebar per ASI #6
#005: Ledge removal inside foundation
#002: Remove unsuitable soils

Unassigned 12,406.00 Approved 01/29/13

001 0 Change order #1 #002: Ledge
#001: DHM-1 ledge removal

#004: DHM-1 ledge removal
#001: Ledge Unassigned 105,116.00 Approved 01/29/13

Total: 117,522.00

Ledgewood Construction
27 Main Street
South Portland, Maine 04106
207.767.1866

Printed on Tue Feb 12, 2013 at 11:57 AM EST

Brunswick Police Station
Job #:12631

Corner of Stanwood and Pleasant Streets
Brunswick Maine. 04011

Page 1 of 1

/24721/project/change_orders/route_to_change_order_package/70215?change_order_package_id=60893
/24721/project/change_orders/route_to_change_order_package/70215?change_order_package_id=60893
/24721/project/change_orders/show_change_order_request/70215?change_order_request_id=64042
/24721/project/change_orders/show_change_order_request/70215?change_order_request_id=64040
/24721/project/change_orders/show_change_order_request/70215?change_order_request_id=64038
/24721/project/change_orders/show_potential_change_order/70215?potential_change_order_id=72791
/24721/project/change_orders/show_potential_change_order/70215?potential_change_order_id=71502
/24721/project/change_orders/show_potential_change_order/70215?potential_change_order_id=67870
/24721/project/change_orders/route_to_change_order_package/70215?change_order_package_id=56811
/24721/project/change_orders/route_to_change_order_package/70215?change_order_package_id=56811
/24721/project/change_orders/show_change_order_request/70215?change_order_request_id=59518
/24721/project/change_orders/show_change_order_request/70215?change_order_request_id=59517
/24721/project/change_orders/show_potential_change_order/70215?potential_change_order_id=68833
/24721/project/change_orders/show_potential_change_order/70215?potential_change_order_id=67635


 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE: February 13, 2013     
  
RE: Quiet Zone update             
 
The extension of the existing quiet zone to include Union and Stanwood streets has 
been delayed as a result of an objection that has been raised by Pan Am railroad. The 
basis of their objection is that due to the number of expected crossings of trains on 
Union Street, we are not allowed to extend the quiet zone. The train crossings that 
trigger this are the Maine Eastern train. The Maine Eastern has to utilize the wye to turn 
the train around. In order to use the wye to turn the train, the train crosses Union Street 
twice. Maine Eastern has also advised us that they intend to start and end their runs in 
Brunswick this summer.  
 
Jim Higgins, Engineering Aid for the Department of Public Works has been working with 
the railroads and the Federal Rail Authority on this project and continues to explore 
options for quiet zones. At this time, we remain waiting to hear from the FRA. 
 
As this issue continues to develop, we will keep the Council and the public informed. 
  
  











 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE: February 13, 2013     
  
RE: Train idling            
 
Councilor Perreault has asked for information regarding the idling of the AMTRAK train 
that usually occurs between noon and 5:30 PM. Train 681 is scheduled to arrive in 
Brunswick at 12:25 PM and then train 688 is scheduled to depart Brunswick at 5:50 PM. 
 
When service began in early November, the train was placed between Union and 
Spring Streets while work was being done in the rail yard to accommodate the train to 
be placed there. In late January the train began to layover in the rail yard as the work 
was completed to allow for that location to be used. On at least one occasion since 
service began, the train was located east of Park Row. 
 
Councilor Perreault has asked if there is a schedule of when and where the train will be 
parked and idling. I have asked for contact information from Pan Am Railroad, but as of 
now I have not been in contact with anyone from Pan Am. 
 
NNEPRA has advised me that the “routine” location for the Downeaster train is the rail 
yard location on the new siding.  That, however, is subject to change based on railroad 
operations on an as needed basis.  
  
  



 
 

 
ITEM 16 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









 
 

 
ITEM 17 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE: February 13, 2013     
  
RE:  VRB/Planning Board recommendations         
 
The Council will be discussing a progress report from the Planning Board regarding the 
request by the Council to make recommendations to the Brunswick Zoning Ordinance 
specific to Section 216, Village Review Overlay Zone (VRZ).  
 
The memo from the Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development summarizes 
the options that have been considered by the Planning Board and by the Village Review 
Board. The preferred option of the two Boards is identified as option 2. This option 
makes no jurisdictional changes to the ordinance in regards to the Village Review 
Board and it also expands the geographic jurisdiction as recommended in the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The initial intent of the Council when this matter was addressed in late 2012 was to 
provide clarity in the Ordinance, particularly on projects that involved demolition. 
Members of the Village Review Board have also expressed frustration regarding the 
language in the Ordinance that has made it difficult for them to apply the language and 
grant demolition permits. 
 
If the Council provides the Planning Board with the direction to develop language in 
response to option 2, I would encourage that there be an emphasis on developing 
review criteria that can accomplish the goal of preserving structures where appropriate 
but also to give the VRB guidance to permit the demolition of buildings where it is 
equally appropriate. 
 



 
 

 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 
 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 

 
February 13, 2013 
 
To:  Brunswick Town Council  
                        Gary Brown, Town Manager 
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP and Pat Scully 
Subject: Village Review Zone Amendment Update:  Jurisdiction Alternatives 
 
The Planning Board and Village Review Board have met twice in joint workshops regarding the review 
and rewrite of the Zoning Ordinance, Section 216, Village Review Overlay Zone (VRZ), in particular, the 
review and approval of demolitions in the VRZ.  Staff developed the attached timetable with completion 
of the amendment and Planning Board recommendation to Town Council by your first meeting in June as 
requested.  Staff also recommended that a comprehensive rewrite of the VRZ be drafted at this time so 
that the overlay provisions will be complete and ready for insertion into a new ordinance later. 
 
A number of key Village Review Zone (VRZ) ordinance elements were discussed at the January 29th 
joint workshop of the Planning Board and Village Review Board in order to provide staff guidance in 
developing a concept draft.  Those key elements included Village Review Board composition, geographic 
and substantive jurisdiction, and review criteria for non-demolition and demolition applications. The 

purpose of the concept draft is to provide more detail to alternatives for the Boards’ review and 
recommendation from which a draft ordinance could then be developed. 
 
As staff began this task, it became evident that a very key component is the question of geographic and 
substantive jurisdiction of the Village Review Board as it will influence all other ordinance sections.  A 
follow-up joint workshop was held February 12th

 

 to review the following jurisdiction alternatives and 
reach consensus on preference.    

Based on our work to date, staff identified a few alternatives: 
 
1. Keep Village Review Board jurisdiction as is, both geographic and substantive, including jurisdiction 
of demolitions, with improved review criteria. 
 
2. Same as Option 1, but expand the Village Review Board jurisdiction geographically as suggested in the 
2008 Comprehensive Plan (include the west side of Maine Street between Pleasant Street and Bath 
Road/Noble Street). 
 



3.  Same as Option 1, but alter VRB jurisdiction to apply only to the portion of the existing or expanded 
VRZ that is designated as an historic sub-district.  
 

4. Change the Village Review Board’s jurisdiction to make it more of an Historic Preservation Review 
Board with jurisdiction over all MHPC designated contributing properties within the Town's three 
National Register listed Historic Districts, National Register listed properties, as well as professionally 
designated local historically significant structures outside the listed Historic Districts.  Demolitions, 
modifications, alterations, additions and new construction involving non-contributing properties within 
the three Historic Districts would be subject to specific design standards administered by the Planning 
Department or the Planning Board (in the case of projects otherwise triggering Planning Board 
jurisdiction). 
 
5.  Same as Option 4, but limited geographically to the existing or expanded Village Review Zone.    
 
The preferred alternative chosen by Planning Board and Village Review Board is #2, which keeps VRB 
substantive jurisdiction as is and expands the geographic jurisdiction as recommended in the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Prior to staff drafting ordinance language, we respectfully request Town Council's consideration of the 
above alternatives and either concur with the Boards' preferred alternative or indicate your preference.   
 
Staff and members of both Boards will be available for questions at your meeting. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sample Ordinance from other communities 
available for viewing in the Town 

Manager’s office 



 
 

 
ITEM 18 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 19 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 

 

 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

 

 
An Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 

 

 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

BRUNSWICK EXECUTIVE AIRPORT MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT AND  

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Presented to: 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

 

DATED: March 4, 2013 



 

 

 

 2 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                  Page 

 

I. Introduction ............................................................................................................3 

 

 A. Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority.............................................3 

 B. MRRA’s Request for Tax Increment Financing Assistance ........................4 

 C. Town’s Consideration of MRRA’s Request ................................................4 

 

II. Physical Description of District ............................................................................4 

 

III. Municipal Approvals .............................................................................................5 

 A. Notice of Public Hearing .............................................................................5 

 B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Council................................................5 

 C. Authorizing Votes ........................................................................................5 

 

EXHIBITS: 

A TIF District Maps 

B. Statutory Requirements & Thresholds 

C Assessor’s Certificate of Original Assessed Value 

D Public Hearing Notice 

E Public Hearing Minutes 

F Town Council Resolution



 

 

 

 3 

 

 

I. Introduction 

 

A. Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 

On August 24, 2005, the Federal Base Realignment and Closure (“BRAC”) Commission voted 

eight to one to close Naval Air Station Brunswick (“NAS Brunswick”) and move its aircraft 

operations to Jacksonville, Florida. The 79-acre Topsham Annex located in Topsham, Maine was 

also included as part of the closure. On September 15, 2005, the final list was approved by the 

President of the United States.  By law, both properties were required to close before September 

15, 2011.  For the Town of Brunswick, the Town of Topsham, Cumberland and Sagadahoc 

counties, and the State of Maine, that decision was the culmination of an intense process and 

significant community effort to keep the facility open to maintain an employment base of over 

5,200 military and civilian personnel.   

NAS Brunswick was built as a multi-purpose campus that has changed over many years to serve 

a variety of purposes.   It has been an airport since its initial development in the late 1930s, built 

on the site of a municipal airfield. Its primary mission has been to house and maintain various 

patrol aircraft and other Navy aviation and non-aviation activities. The base is considered both 

an industrial facility where aircraft were hangared, maintained and flown, as well as a support 

facility with offices, retail buildings, housing and ancillary uses associated with a relatively self-

contained operation. In total there are over 200 buildings totaling over 1.75 million square feet 

on the base; forty of which buildings would be considered significant facilities.   

The closure of NAS Brunswick represents one of the largest single employer relocations or 

closings in the history of the state.  The State Planning Office conducted an assessment of 

impact closure and revised the state gross product projection for 2015 downward by $390 

million, cutting the projected growth rate from two to approximately one percent.  They also 

revised the state population growth downward by 7,400 as a result of the base closure.   

Projected State personal income was also reduced by $370 million.  Revenues to the State of 

Maine are also expected to be reduced by some $20 million. 

In other economic displacement events such as plant closings, most individuals continue to live 

in the community, albeit with reduced income, and they still contribute to the economy, have 

children in local schools, and participate in the activities of the community.   In the case of a 

base closure and realignment, however, an entire segment of the population leaves the area, 

which increases vacancy rates and eliminates millions of dollars spent in the local economy on 

everything from housing, food, transportation and energy costs, to professional services and 

entertainment. 

The impact of the closure is so large that the Maine Legislature created the Midcoast Regional 

Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”) for the purpose of managing the transition of this large 

military facility back into the fabric of the region and to support the rapid and successful 

redevelopment of NAS Brunswick.  MRRA is a public municipal corporation.  While MRRA has 

many of the powers of a municipality, it does not have taxing jurisdiction over the property 

located within NAS Brunswick.  See 5 M.R.S.A. § 13083-I(1).  Thus, in order to use municipal 

tax increment financing (“TIF”) as an economic development tool to aid in the redevelopment of 



 

 

 

 4 

 

 

NAS Brunswick, MRRA must work cooperatively with the Town of Brunswick in order to 

create and use TIF revenues to foster and/or fund the desired redevelopment activities.  

B. MRRA’s Request for Tax Increment Financing Assistance  

MRRA has presented the Town with a request for tax increment financing assistance at NAS 

Brunswick as part of a larger project to redevelop the 1.7 million square feet of industrial, 

commercial and professional office space at NAS Brunswick.  MRRA’s mission is to facilitate 

the rapid redevelopment of the base properties in order to realize full build-out of Brunswick 

Landing in accordance with the adopted Reuse Master Plan for BNAS and the Airport Master 

Plan.  The proposed tax increment financing plan for the airport facilities at the Brunswick 

Executive Airport includes creating a 146-acre tax increment financing district (the “District”), 

which is intended to facilitate the redevelopment, investment and transition of the naval airfield 

into a civilian general aviation airport and business executive park. Investment in the buildings 

and infrastructure used for aeronautical purposes associated with this 146-acre TIF District 

would enhance the competitiveness of the Midcoast region and the State of Maine, and allow the 

area to attract, grow and create new businesses in the growing aeronautical cluster in the 

Midcoast region.  Having this area in a TIF district will allow MRRA to seek funding from the 

Town for assistance in its efforts to redevelop the NAS Brunswick.     

C. Town’s Consideration of MRRA’s Request   

The Town of Brunswick is in discussions with MRRA regarding MRRA’s TIF proposal, and 

actively considering how best to maximize the Town’s ability to assist in the redevelopment of 

the NAS Brunswick through the use of tax increment financing.  As the Town has not yet 

finalized the terms of a development program for the District, the Town is moving forward only 

with the designation of the District at this time.  The Town wishes to designate the District prior 

to April 1, 2013 in order to capture any new taxable value that may be in the District as of that 

date.  Once the District is designated, the Town will continue working out the terms of a 

development program for the District, and will seek DECD approval of the development 

program later in the year.  Like the District, the final development program will be the subject of 

a public hearing prior to a final vote by the Council to approve the development program.      

The Town recognizes in this case that any DECD approval of the District would be a conditional 

approval, subject to DECD’s final approval of a development program governing the District.  

The Town further recognizes and agrees that the Town shall not spend any TIF revenues 

produced by the District until DECD has approved a development program for the District and 

issued a final, non-conditional approval for the District. 

II.  Physical Description of District 
 

MRRA proposes to have the Town support it in the development of this Project through the 

designation of the Brunswick Executive Airport Municipal Development and Tax Increment 

Financing District (the “District”).  The District will have a term of thirty (30) years.  The Town 

plans to capture all (100%) of the new value in the District for the entire 30-year period.  The 



 

 

 

 5 

 

 

proposed 146-acre District is shown in Exhibit A.  The statutory threshold limits regarding the 

District’s size and taxable value are shown in Exhibit B.   

 

The Original Assessed Value of the District was zero dollars ($0) as of March 31, 2012 (April 1, 

2011).  Since MRRA is a tax exempt entity, there will not be any new taxable value in the 

District until new taxable value is created in the District as a result of MRRA’s successful 

redevelopment efforts.    

 

During the 30-year life of the District, the Town Manager or the Manager’s designee will be 

responsible for all administrative matters within the purview of the Town concerning the 

implementation and operation of the District.    

 

III. Municipal Approvals 
 

A. Notice of Public Hearing 

 
Attached as Exhibit D, is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing published in the Times Record, 

a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on _____________, 2013, a date at least ten (10) 

days prior to the public hearing.  The public hearing was held on March 4, 2013, in accordance 

with the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(1).   

 

B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Town Council 

 
Attached as Exhibit E, is a certified copy of the minutes of the public hearing held on March 4, 

2013, at which time the proposed District was discussed by the public. 

  

C. Authorizing Votes 

 
Attached as Exhibit F is a copy of the Brunswick Town Council Resolution designating the 

District, which Resolution was adopted by the Council at a meeting of the Council duly called 

and held on March 4, 2013. 

 

 



 

 

 

 6 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

TIF District Map 

Location Map 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 7 

 

 



 
Intentionally left blank 



 

 

 

 8 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Statutory Requirements and Thresholds 

 

 



 

 

 

 9 

 

 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS & THRESHOLDS 

      Exhibit B 

A. ACRE LIMITATION -        BRUNSWICK EXECUTIVE AIRPORT 

1. Total Acreage of Municipality 28,800 

2. Total Acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District 146 
3. Total Downtown acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District 

 
            0 

4. Total Transit acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District      0 

   5. Total acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District counted towards 2% cap (A2-A3-A4) 
 

       146 

6. Percentage of total acreage in proposed municipal TIF District (cannot exceed 2%) Divide A5 by A1 .5% 

7. Total acreage of all existing and proposed municipal TIF districts in the municipality. Add A2 to sum of 

all existing TIF district acreage. 

 Existing       203.03 

Prop. B.L.    542 

Prop. B.E.A.146                     
891.03 

8. Total acreage of an existing or Proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 89.97          

9. Total acreage of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

10. Total acreage of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

11. Total acreage of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 

5% cap. Subtract A8+A9+A10 from A7. 

801.06 

12. Percentage of total acreage in all existing and proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 

Divide A11 by A1. 

 

2.8% 

13. Total Acreage of all real property in the Proposed Municipal TIF District that is:  

 

 

 

(Note: a, b, or c must be at least 25%) Acres % 

a. Blighted                                                   (Divide acres by A2)   

b.    In need of rehabilitation/conservation     (Divide acres by A2)   

c.     Suitable for industrial/commercial site   (Divide acres by A2) 146 100% 
TOTAL 146 100% 

B. VALUATION LIMITATION 

1. Total Aggregate Value of Municipality (TAV)   

Use most recent April 1
st 

1,332,368,190 

2. Original Assessed Value (OAV) of Proposed Municipal TIF District.  

Use March 31
st
 of tax year preceding date of municipal designation 

0 

3. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality.  
Add b2 to sum of all existing TIF district OAVs  

80,803,500 

4. OAV of an existing or proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 71,082,500 
5. OAV of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

6. OAV of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

7. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 5% cap 

Subtract B4+B5+B6 from B3 
9,271,000 

8. Percentage of total OAV to TAV in all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 

Divide B7 by B1 
.73% 

Updated 01/20/2011 



 

 

 

 10 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Assessor’s Certificate 

 

 



 

 

 

 11 

 

 



 

 

 

 12 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

Notice of Public Hearing 

 

 



 

 

 

 13 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

Regarding 

 

A Municipal Tax Increment Financing District To Be Known As The  

“Brunswick Executive Airport Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District”  

 

 Notice is hereby given that the Brunswick Town Council will hold a public hearing on  

 

March 4, 2013,  

at the 

Brunswick Municipal Meeting Room at 16 Station Avenue, Brunswick, Maine, 

The Public Hearing will be at 7:00 p.m.   

  

The purpose of the public hearing is to receive public comments on the designation of the 

proposed municipal tax increment financing district to be known as the Brunswick Executive 

Airport Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”) pursuant 

to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended. 

 

The proposed municipal development and tax increment financing district consists of 146 acres 

of property located at the former Naval Air Station Brunswick.   

 

A development program governing the District will be created, and will be the subject of a 

separate public hearing on a later date to be announced by the Council. 

 

All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity to 

be heard at that time. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 14 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Minutes of Public Hearing and Town Council Meeting 

 

 



 

 

 

 15 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

Minutes of Public Hearing and Town Council Meeting 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 16 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 

Town Council Resolution 

 

 



 

 

 

 17 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 

 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 

Designating the Brunswick Executive Airport Municipal Development and  

Tax Increment Financing District 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 

of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, to designate specific areas within the 

Town as the Brunswick Executive Airport Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District (the “District”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, there is a need to encourage and facilitate the rapid redevelopment of 

industrial, commercial and professional office space within the Town at the former naval air base 

known as the Naval Air Station Brunswick (“NAS Brunswick”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the recent closure of NAS Brunswick creates an acute need to provide 

additional employment opportunities for the residents of the Town and the surrounding region; to 

improve and broaden the tax base of the Town; and to improve the general economy of the Town, 

the surrounding region and the State of Maine; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to designate the District at this time to ensure that any new 

taxable value located in the District would be captured in a tax increment financing (“TIF”) 

district; and    

 

WHEREAS, the Town is working to create a development program for the District, but is 

not yet fully prepared to adopt a final development program for the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town understands and agrees that any approval of the District by the 

Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) would be a conditional 

approval until such time as DECD is presented with and approves a development program for the 

District; and  

  

WHEREAS, the Town understands and agrees that the Town shall not spend any 

incremental tax revenues resulting from the designation of the District until such time as DECD is 

presented with and approves a development program for the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the comments provided at the public 

hearing, both for and against the designation of the District, if any; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from DECD, 

conditionally approving the designation of the District;  



 

 

 

 18 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.   The Town Council hereby finds and determines that: 

 

a. At least twenty-five percent (25%), by area, of the real property within the District, 

as hereinafter designated, is in need of rehabilitation, redevelopment or conservation or is suitable 

for commercial uses as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5223(3); and 

 

 b. The total area of the District does not exceed two percent (2%) of the total acreage 

of the Town, and the total area of all development districts within the Town (including this 

proposed District, but not including the Town’s Downtown TIF District) does not exceed five 

percent (5%) of the total acreage of the Town; and 

 

 c. The original assessed value of all existing and proposed tax increment financing 

districts (including this proposed District, but not including the Town’s Downtown TIF District) 

does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total value of equalized taxable property within the 

Town as of April 1, 2012; and 

 

 d. The designation of the District will generate substantial economic benefits for the 

Town and its residents and the surrounding region, and will contribute to the betterment of the 

health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Town, including stimulating new employment 

opportunities, a broadened and improved tax base and economic stimulus, and therefore the 

designation of the District constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The Town Council has 

considered all evidence, if any, presented to the Council with regard to any adverse economic 

effect on or detriment to any existing business and has found and determined that such adverse 

economic effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution 

expected to be made through the designation of the District. 

 

 Section 2.  Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 

amended, the Town Council hereby designates the Brunswick Executive Airport Municipal 

Development and Tax Increment Financing District, as more particularly described in the narrative 

presented to the Town Council as part of the materials supporting the Town’s designation of the 

District. 

  

 Section 3.  The Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to submit the proposed designation of the District to DECD for review 

and approval pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(2).  

 

Section 4.   The foregoing designation of the District shall automatically become final 

and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the Town of conditional approval of the 

designation of the District by DECD, without requirement of any further action by the Town, the 

Town Council, or any other party. 

 

Section 5.   The Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized 

and empowered, at his discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the documents 

designating the District as he may deem reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate 



 

 

 

 19 

 

 

the process for review and approval of the District designation by DECD, so long as such revisions 

are not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Council in 

designating the District. 

 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

Proposed to Town Council:  ______________ 

Public Hearing:   March 4, 2013 

Adopted by Town Council:  March 4, 2013 

 



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

 

 

An Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 

 

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

BRUNSWICK LANDING MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT AND  

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Presented to: 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

 

DATED: March 4, 2013 



 

 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                  Page 

 

I. Introduction ............................................................................................................3 

 

 A. Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority.............................................3 

 B. MRRA’s Request for Tax Increment Financing Assistance ........................4 

 C. Town’s Consideration of MRRA’s Request ................................................4 

 

II. Physical Description of District ............................................................................4 

 

III. Municipal Approvals .............................................................................................5 

 A. Notice of Public Hearing .............................................................................5 

 B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Council................................................5 

 C. Authorizing Votes ........................................................................................5 

 

EXHIBITS: 

A TIF District Maps 

B. Statutory Requirements & Thresholds 

C Assessor’s Certificate of Original Assessed Value 

D Public Hearing Notice 

E Public Hearing Minutes 

F Town Council Resolution



 

 3 

I. Introduction 
 

A. Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 

On August 24, 2005, the Federal Base Realignment and Closure (“BRAC”) Commission voted 

eight to one to close Naval Air Station Brunswick (“NAS Brunswick”) and move its aircraft 

operations to Jacksonville, Florida. The 79-acre Topsham Annex located in Topsham, Maine was 

also included as part of the closure. On September 15, 2005, the final list was approved by the 

President of the United States.  By law, both properties were required to close before September 

15, 2011.  For the Town of Brunswick, the Town of Topsham, Cumberland and Sagadahoc 

counties, and the State of Maine, that decision was the culmination of an intense process and 

significant community effort to keep the facility open to maintain an employment base of over 

5,200 military and civilian personnel.   

NAS Brunswick was built as a multi-purpose campus that has changed over many years to serve 

a variety of purposes.   It has been an airport since its initial development in the late 1930s, built 

on the site of a municipal airfield. Its primary mission has been to house and maintain various 

patrol aircraft and other Navy aviation and non-aviation activities. The base is considered both 

an industrial facility where aircraft were hangared, maintained and flown, as well as a support 

facility with offices, retail buildings, housing and ancillary uses associated with a relatively self-

contained operation. In total there are over 200 buildings totaling over 1.75 million square feet 

on the base; forty of which buildings would be considered significant facilities.   

The closure of NAS Brunswick represents one of the largest single employer relocations or 

closings in the history of the state.  The State Planning Office conducted an assessment of 

impact closure and revised the state gross product projection for 2015 downward by $390 

million, cutting the projected growth rate from two to approximately one percent.  They also 

revised the state population growth downward by 7,400 as a result of the base closure.   

Projected State personal income was also reduced by $370 million.  Revenues to the State of 

Maine are also expected to be reduced by some $20 million. 

In other economic displacement events such as plant closings, most individuals continue to live 

in the community, albeit with reduced income, and they still contribute to the economy, have 

children in local schools, and participate in the activities of the community.   In the case of a 

base closure and realignment, however, an entire segment of the population leaves the area, 

which increases vacancy rates and eliminates millions of dollars spent in the local economy on 

everything from housing, food, transportation and energy costs, to professional services and 

entertainment. 

The impact of the closure is so large that the Maine Legislature created the Midcoast Regional 

Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”) for the purpose of managing the transition of this large 

military facility back into the fabric of the region and to support the rapid and successful 

redevelopment of NAS Brunswick.  MRRA is a public municipal corporation.  While MRRA has 

many of the powers of a municipality, it does not have taxing jurisdiction over the property 

located within NAS Brunswick.  See 5 M.R.S.A. § 13083-I(1).  Thus, in order to use municipal 

tax increment financing (“TIF”) as an economic development tool to aid in the redevelopment of 



 

 4 

NAS Brunswick, MRRA must work cooperatively with the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) in 

order to create and use TIF revenues to foster and/or fund the desired redevelopment activities.    

B. MRRA’s Request for Tax Increment Financing Assistance  

MRRA has presented the Town with a request for tax increment financing assistance at NAS 

Brunswick as part of a larger project to redevelop the 1.7 million square feet of industrial, 

commercial and professional office space at NAS Brunswick.  MRRA’s mission is to facilitate 

the rapid redevelopment of the base properties in order to realize full build-out of Brunswick 

Landing in accordance with the adopted Reuse Master Plan for NAS Brunswick.  The proposed 

tax increment financing plan for the area formerly known as the cantonment area at NAS 

Brunswick includes creating a 542-acre tax increment financing district (the “District”), which 

will be developed into professional office space to enhance the competitiveness of the Midcoast 

region and the State of Maine to attract, grow and create new businesses in the industry clusters 

identified in the Reuse Master Plan for NAS Brunswick.  These industries include: composite 

manufacturing, information technology, alternative energy development, research, development 

and manufacturing and tourism and convention businesses in the Midcoast region.  Having this 

area in a TIF district will allow MRRA to seek funding from the Town for assistance in its 

efforts to redevelop the NAS Brunswick.     

C. Town’s Consideration of MRRA’s Request   

The Town of Brunswick is in discussions with MRRA regarding MRRA’s TIF proposal, and 

actively considering how best to maximize the Town’s ability to assist in the redevelopment of 

the NAS Brunswick through the use of tax increment financing.  As the Town has not yet 

finalized the terms of a development program for the District, the Town is moving forward only 

with the designation of the District at this time.  The Town wishes to designate the District prior 

to April 1, 2013 in order to capture any new taxable value that may be in the District as of that 

date.  Once the District is designated, the Town will continue working out the terms of a 

development program for the District, and will seek DECD approval of the development 

program later in the year.  Like the District, the final development program will be the subject of 

a public hearing prior to a final vote by the Council to approve the development program.      

The Town recognizes in this case that any DECD approval of the District would be a conditional 

approval, subject to DECD’s final approval of a development program governing the District.  

The Town further recognizes and agrees that the Town shall not spend any TIF revenues 

produced by the District until DECD has approved a development program for the District and 

issued a final, non-conditional approval for the District. 

II.  Physical Description of District 
 

MRRA proposes to have the Town support it in the development of this Project through the 

designation of the Brunswick Landing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District (the “District”).  The District will have a term of thirty (30) years.  The Town plans to 

capture all (100%) of the new value in the District for the entire 30-year period.  The proposed 

542-acre District is shown in Exhibit A.  The statutory threshold limits regarding the District’s 

size and taxable value are shown in Exhibit B.   



 

 5 

 

The Original Assessed Value of the District was zero dollars ($0) as of March 31, 2012 (April 1, 

2011).  Since MRRA is a tax exempt entity, there will not be any new taxable value in the 

District until new taxable value is created in the District as a result of MRRA’s successful 

redevelopment efforts.    

 

During the 30-year life of the District, the Town Manager or the Manager’s designee will be 

responsible for all administrative matters within the purview of the Town concerning the 

implementation and operation of the District.    

 

III. Municipal Approvals 
 

A. Notice of Public Hearing 

 
Attached as Exhibit D, is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing published in the Times Record, 

a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on ____________, 2013, a date at least ten (10) 

days prior to the public hearing.  The public hearing was held on March 4, 2013, in accordance 

with the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(1).   

 

B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Town Council 

 
Attached as Exhibit E, is a certified copy of the minutes of the public hearing held on March 4, 

2013, at which time the proposed District was discussed by the public. 

  

C. Authorizing Votes 

 
Attached as Exhibit F is a copy of the Brunswick Town Council Resolution designating the 

District, which Resolution was adopted by the Council at a meeting of the Council duly called 

and held on March 4, 2013. 



 

 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

TIF District Map 

Location Map 

 

 

 



 

 7 

EXHIBIT  A



 
Intentionally left blank 



 

 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Statutory Requirements and Thresholds 

 

 



 

 9 

 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS & THRESHOLDS 
      Exhibit B 

A. ACRE LIMITATION -        BRUNSWICK LANDING 

1. Total Acreage of Municipality 28,800 

2. Total Acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District          542 

3. Total Downtown acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District 

 
            0 

4. Total Transit acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District      0   

5. Total acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District counted towards 2% cap (A2-A3-A4) 
 

       542 

6. Percentage of total acreage in proposed municipal TIF District (cannot exceed 2%) Divide A5 by A1        1.9% 

 

           1.9% 7. Total acreage of all existing and proposed municipal TIF districts in the municipality. Add A2 to sum of 

all existing TIF district acreage. 

 Existing       203.03 

Prop. B.L.    542 

Prop. B.E.A.146                     
891.03 

8. Total acreage of an existing or Proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 89.97          

9. Total acreage of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

10. Total acreage of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 

11. Total acreage of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 

5% cap. Subtract A8+A9+A10 from A7. 
801.06 

12. Percentage of total acreage in all existing and proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 

Divide A11 by A1. 

 

2.8% 

13. Total Acreage of all real property in the Proposed Municipal TIF District that is:  

 

 

 

(Note: a, b, or c must be at least 25%) Acres % 

a. Blighted                                                   (Divide acres by A2)   

b.    In need of rehabilitation/conservation     (Divide acres by A2)   

c.     Suitable for industrial/commercial site   (Divide acres by A2) 542 100% 
TOTAL 542 100% 

B. VALUATION LIMITATION 

1. Total Aggregate Value of Municipality (TAV)   

Use most recent April 1
st 

1,332,368,190 

2. Original Assessed Value (OAV) of Proposed Municipal TIF District.  

Use March 31
st
 of tax year preceding date of municipal designation 

0 

3. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality.  
Add b2 to sum of all existing TIF district OAVs  

80,803,500 

4. OAV of an existing or proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 71,082,500 

5. OAV of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 

 
0 

6. OAV of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality. 0 
7. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 5% cap 

Subtract B4+B5+B6 from B3 
9,271,000 

8. Percentage of total OAV to TAV in all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 

Divide B7 by B1 
.73% 

Updated 01/20/2011 



 

 10 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Assessor’s Certificate 

 

 

 



 

 11 

 
 

 

 



 

 12 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

Notice of Public Hearing 

 

 

 



 

 13 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

Regarding 

 

A Municipal Tax Increment Financing District To Be Known As The  

“Brunswick Landing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District”  

 

 Notice is hereby given that the Brunswick Town Council will hold a public hearing on  

 

March 4, 2013,  

at the 

Brunswick Municipal Meeting Room at 16 Station Avenue, Brunswick, Maine, 

The Public Hearing will be at 7:00 p.m.   

  

The purpose of the public hearing is to receive public comments on the designation of the 

proposed municipal tax increment financing district to be known as the Brunswick Landing 

Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”) pursuant to the 

provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended. 

 

The proposed municipal development and tax increment financing district consists of 542 acres 

of property located at the former Naval Air Station Brunswick.   

 

A development program governing the District will be created, and will be the subject of a 

separate public hearing on a later date to be announced by the Council. 

 

All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity to 

be heard at that time. 

 

 

 



 

 14 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Minutes of Public Hearing and Town Council Meeting 

 

 



 

 15 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

Minutes of Public Hearing and Town Council Meeting 

 



 

 16 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 

Town Council Resolution 

 

 

 



 

 17 

 

EXHIBIT F 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 

Designating the Brunswick Landing Municipal Development and  

Tax Increment Financing District 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 

of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, to designate specific areas within the 

Town as the Brunswick Landing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 

(the “District”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, there is a need to encourage and facilitate the rapid redevelopment of 

industrial, commercial and professional office space within the Town at the former naval air base 

known as the Naval Air Station Brunswick (“NAS Brunswick”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the recent closure of NAS Brunswick creates an acute need to provide 

additional employment opportunities for the residents of the Town and the surrounding region; to 

improve and broaden the tax base of the Town; and to improve the general economy of the Town, 

the surrounding region and the State of Maine; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to designate the District at this time to ensure that any new 

taxable value located in the District would be captured in a tax increment financing (“TIF”) 

district; and    

 

WHEREAS, the Town is working to create a development program for the District, but is 

not yet fully prepared to adopt a final development program for the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town understands and agrees that any approval of the District by the 

Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) would be a conditional 

approval until such time as DECD is presented with and approves a development program for the 

District; and  

  

WHEREAS, the Town understands and agrees that the Town shall not spend any 

incremental tax revenues resulting from the designation of the District until such time as DECD is 

presented with and approves a development program for the District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the comments provided at the public 

hearing, both for and against the designation of the District, if any; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is expected that approval will be sought and obtained from DECD, 

conditionally approving the designation of the District;  

 



 

 18 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.   The Town Council hereby finds and determines that: 

 

a. At least twenty-five percent (25%), by area, of the real property within the District, 

as hereinafter designated, is in need of rehabilitation, redevelopment or conservation or is suitable 

for commercial uses as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5223(3); and 

 

 b. The total area of the District does not exceed two percent (2%) of the total acreage 

of the Town, and the total area of all development districts within the Town (including this 

proposed District, but not including the Town’s Downtown TIF District) does not exceed five 

percent (5%) of the total acreage of the Town; and 

 

 c. The original assessed value of all existing and proposed tax increment financing 

districts (including this proposed District, but not including the Town’s Downtown TIF District) 

does not exceed five percent (5%) of the total value of equalized taxable property within the 

Town as of April 1, 2012; and 

 

 d. The designation of the District will generate substantial economic benefits for the 

Town and its residents and the surrounding region, and will contribute to the betterment of the 

health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the Town, including stimulating new employment 

opportunities, a broadened and improved tax base and economic stimulus, and therefore the 

designation of the District constitutes a good and valid public purpose.  The Town Council has 

considered all evidence, if any, presented to the Council with regard to any adverse economic 

effect on or detriment to any existing business and has found and determined that such adverse 

economic effect on or detriment to any existing business, if any, is outweighed by the contribution 

expected to be made through the designation of the District. 

 

 Section 2.  Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as 

amended, the Town Council hereby designates the Brunswick Landing Municipal Development 

and Tax Increment Financing District, as more particularly described in the narrative presented to 

the Town Council as part of the materials supporting the Town’s designation of the District. 

  

 Section 3.  The Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to submit the proposed designation of the District to DECD for review 

and approval pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(2).  

 

Section 4.   The foregoing designation of the District shall automatically become final 

and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the Town of conditional approval of the 

designation of the District by DECD, without requirement of any further action by the Town, the 

Town Council, or any other party. 

 

Section 5. The Town Manager, or his duly appointed representative, is hereby 

authorized and empowered, at his discretion, from time to time, to make such revisions to the 

documents designating the District as he may deem reasonably necessary or convenient in order to 

facilitate the process for review and approval of the District designation by DECD, so long as such 



 

 19 

revisions are not inconsistent with these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Council 

in designating the District. 

 

Section 6.   This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

Proposed to Town Council:  ______________ 

Public Hearing:   March 4, 2013 

Adopted by Town Council:  March 4, 2013 

 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
February 4, 2013 

7:00 P.M.  
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, 
John Richardson, Jr., and Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Tom Farrell, Parks 
and Recreation Director; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Dan Devereaux, Marine 
Resource Officer; Russ Wrede, Police Sergeant; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance and asked the Town 
Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Jim Friedlander spoke regarding a rule that prohibits the Council from taking action on 
items outside of the town, involving State or Federal government.  
 
LeonThayer spoke on clean energy projects. 
 
Margie Greenhut asked that smaller garbage bags be considered. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Perreault spoke on behalf of some Bouchard area residents regarding the idling of 
the train near their neighborhood.  Manager Brown responded by providing information he 
received from Patricia Quinn of  NNEPRA. 
 
Councilor Brayman inquired about the Council agenda not being in the Times Record.  Fran 
Smith, Town Clerk, responded. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
To add item 15 regarding a resolution authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure on 
certain real estate tax lien mortgages. 
 
To move Item 13 after the public hearing. 
 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
February 4, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
Reports were given on the following committees: Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street 
Corridor Master Plan Implementation Committee, Recycling and Sustainability Committee, 
Recreation Trails and Open Space Committee, and the MMA Legislative Policy Committee.  
 
Alex Anesko, Chair of the Recycling and Sustainability Committee, provided a report on this 
committee’s activities.  He responded to questions from Councilor Favreau. 
 
(A copy of Mr. Anesko’s report will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(b) Report from the Marine Resource Committee requesting the authority to open 

and close coastal waters (Action required)  
 
Chair Wilson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to authorize the Marine Resource 
Committee to open and close coastal waters per Chapter 11, Marine Activities 
Structures and Ways, Section 11-161 Opening and Closing of Coastal Waters.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas.   
 
(c) Acceptance of funds from New England Amateur Radio Festival (Action 

required) 
 
Chief Brillant spoke regarding this item.  He responded to questions from Councilor 
Brayman. 
 
Councilor Favreau spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to accept and expend funds in 
the amount of $4,100 from the New England Amateur Radio Festival to purchase 
equipment on behalf of the CERT/ARES Team.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
(A copy of the funding request submitted to NEAR-Fest and a list of the equipment they intend 
to purchase will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
9. The Town Council will hold a public hearing on the following Alcoholic Beverage 

license, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Full-Time Spirituous, Vinous & Malt 
Trattoria Athena, LLC   Timothy O’Brien & Marc Provencher 
D/B/A: Enoteca Athena 
97 Maine Street 

 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
February 4, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Chair Wilson opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to approve an Alcoholic 
Beverage license for Enoteca Athena, located at 97 Maine Street.  The motion carried 
with nine (9) yeas. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 13 was taken up prior to Item 10. 
 
10. The Town Council will update the public on the nominee selection process for the 

MRRA Board, and will determine if any action is necessary.  (Chair Wilson and 
Councilor Knight) 

 
Councilor Knight introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Tucker, and Chair 
Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
11. The Town Council will consider authorizing the Town to seek bids for activities 

and items relative to the development of the Dog Park, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Councilor Favreau)   

 
Councilor Favreau introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Manager Brown responded. 
 
Sally Loving, BARK (Brunswick Area Recreation for Kanines), spoke regarding this item 
and responded to questions from Councilor Pols and Councilor Brayman. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to authorize the Town to seek 
bids for activities and items relative to the development of the Dog Park.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Manager Brown and one from the Recreation Commission will be 
attached to the official minutes.) 
 
12. The Town Council will consider requesting that the Planning Board review 

changes to the Zoning Ordinance regarding amending the MU3 column of 
“Table 206.1 Use Table” to change Residence Hall from a prohibited use (X) to a 
permitted use (P), and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Favreau) 

 
Councilor Favreau introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Pols, and Councilor Perreault spoke 
regarding this item. 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
February 4, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development, responded to questions from 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Knight, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
Councilor Pols asked a question, to which Catherine Longley from Bowdoin College 
responded.  
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to request the Planning 
Board review changes to the Zoning Ordinance regarding amending the MU3 column of 
“Table 206.1 Use Table” to change Residence Hall from a prohibited use (X) to a 
permitted use (P).  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Perreault was 
opposed.  
 
13. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution Supporting an 

Amendment to the United States Constitution to Provide that Corporations are 
not Entitled to the Rights of Natural Persons with Regard to the Expenditure of 
Money to Influence Elections,” and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor 
Brayman and Councilor Richardson) 

 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt the “Resolution 
Supporting an Amendment to the United States Constitution to Provide that 
Corporations are not Entitled to the Rights of Natural Persons with Regard to the 
Expenditure of Money to Influence Elections” and to request the Clerk read the 
resolution.   
 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item.  
 
Councilor Brayman provided a petition from citizens and asked that it be attached to the 
resolution. 
 
Clerk Smith read the draft resolution. 
 
The following people spoke regarding this item. 

Steve Kercel 
Julie Pease, 13 Chestnut Street 
Leon Thayer, Mere Point Road 

 
Chair Wilson opened the floor to Councilors to speak on the issue. 
 
Councilor Tucker, Councilor Pols, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Knight, 
Councilor Watson, and Chair Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Vote on the motion: 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt the “Resolution 
Supporting an Amendment to the United States Constitution to Provide that 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
February 4, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Corporations are not Entitled to the Rights of Natural Persons with Regard to the 
Expenditure of Money to Influence Elections” and to request the Clerk read the 
resolution. The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Watson, Councilor Favreau, 
and Chair Wilson were opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.)   
 
The citizen petition will be filed in the Town Clerk’s office, attached to the adopted resolution. 
 
14. The Town Council will discuss resumption of the TIF programs with the 

Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority and will determine if any action is 
required. (Chair Wilson) 

 
Chair Wilson introduced this item. 
 
There was a consensus to have negotiations with MRRA begin again, with Councilor Tucker 
and Councilor Richardson as the Council representatives. 
 
15. (ADDED) The Town Council will consider a Resolution authorizing the Town 

Treasurer to waive foreclosure on certain real estate tax lien mortgages, and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
John Eldridge, Finance Director, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt a “Resolution 
authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure on certain real estate tax lien 
mortgages” and waive the reading of the resolution.  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas.  
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of January 22, 2013 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
February 4, 2013 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
February 5, 2013 
 

February 19, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 







 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\Documents\CIP Policy.docx 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
Capital Improvement Program Policy 

 
 
Purpose of this Policy 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the annual development of the Town’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP).  Further, it defines the components of the CIP documents and the definition 
of projects and items eligible for inclusion in the CIP. 
 
Background and Consideration 
 
Article VI of the charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine requires the Town to have a capital 
improvement program (CIP).  A CIP is universally recognized as a fundamental financial management 
tool.  The top three bond rating agencies in the United States all emphasize the importance of a valid CIP 
in their evaluation of a municipality’s finances and as an important factor in a community’s bond rating.  
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has several recommended best practices that 
speak to the importance of a CIP and how one should be developed. 
 
In 2003, the Town developed its first systematic approach to the development of a CIP.  That system or a 
variant of it has been used since, with varying degrees of success.  In 2012, the Town decided to revisit 
many of the assumptions upon which that model was based, with the goal of improving the document as a 
planning and financial management tool.  A CIP committee was appointed to develop a new process and 
new documentation.  Based on experience with the old model and input from staff, the Committee 
adopted the following guiding principles for its work in developing a new process and revised documents: 
 

 Focus on larger projects with significant cost and life expectancy that may also result in the 
issuance of debt.   

 Establish a mechanism and annual funding for the replacement of vehicles that is consistent 
among all departments. 

 Enhance public and stakeholder opportunities for involvement. 
 
CIP Committee 
 
The Town Council shall establish a subcommittee, consisting of three (3) members of the Town Council, 
to: 
 

 administer this policy and make recommendations regarding amendments to the policy;  
 develop and administer any procedures consistent with this policy as necessary to meet the goals 

of this policy; 
 review the Town Manager’s proposed CIP and deliver the committee’s recommendations to the 

Town Council no later than December 31st; 
 
Public and Stakeholder Participation 
 
The CIP Committee shall establish procedures to insure participation in the development and review of 
the CIP.  At a minimum, the Committee shall establish two dates during the development and review 
period to allow for input from the public, the Town’s departments, and other stakeholders. 
 
 



 

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\Documents\CIP Policy.docx 

 
Page 2 of 4 

CIP Project Classifications 
 
Projects in the CIP shall be listed in four classifications: 
 

I. CIP Projects Recommended for Funding - Projects and acquisitions included shall have been 
sufficiently developed and defined as to clearly identify the scope and cost of the project and the 
recommended funding sources.  It is highly likely that projects in this class will eventually be 
authorized for completion and funding. 

 
II. CIP Projects In Development - Projects and acquisitions of this class are under active 

consideration but have not been sufficiently developed or defined to clearly identify the scope or 
cost of the project.  Typically, projects in this category are being evaluated from several 
alternatives, or there is not sufficient confidence in the cost estimates to determine whether the 
project should be recommended for funding.   

 
III. CIP Projects Not Recommended - Projects and acquisitions of this class have been identified or 

requested by departments or others but are either insufficiently developed or defined, or have 
been deemed to be beyond the funding capacity of the Town.  These projects may receive 
consideration at a future date should circumstances warrant. 

 
IV. CIP Projects Non-Town Funded - Projects to be completed and funded solely by entities other 

than the Town, with an estimated operational cost impact to the Town of less than $25,000, are of 
interest to the Town in its planning efforts.  However, as they have a minimal, or no, impact on 
Town finances, they are shown separately from Town funded projects. 

 
Because operating costs, especially in situations where non-town funding is involved, can be a significant 
cost in evaluating the life cycle costs of a project, the Town shall include in the CIP any project or 
acquisition with an estimated annual operating cost or savings of $25,000, regardless of the source of 
funds proposed to construct or acquire the project. 
 
CIP Project Categories 
 
Within each of the four classifications identified above, the CIP committee shall establish project 
categories.  For the initial CIP, the categories within the classifications will include: 
 

 Facilities – New 
 Facilities – Improvements 
 Infrastructure 
 Acquisitions 
 Annual Programs 

o Vehicle Replacement 
o Work Programs 

 Road Construction/Reconstruction 
 Sidewalk Construction/Reconstruction 
 Road Resurfacing 

 
After the initial year, the CIP Committee may amend these categories as it deems appropriate. 
  



 

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\Documents\CIP Policy.docx 

 
Page 3 of 4 

Definitions 
 
The following definitions shall guide in the development of the CIP: 
 

Capital Project or Acquisition – a CIP project, item, or a network or system of items must have a 
cost of at least $100,000 and a life expectancy or five years or more.   
 
Network or System of Items - items that are intended to be a part of a larger network or system, 
that when purchased individually may have a cost of less than $100,000.  For example, a 
computer network may be comprised of several components, each of which cost less than 
$100,000, but as a group comprise a network costing $100,000 or more.  The terms “project” and 
“projects” shall include items that are acquisitions. 
 
Vehicle Replacement Program – a systematic annual funding process for the replacement of fleet 
vehicles and equipment.  These programs shall be included as items in the CIP even when the 
annual funding is less than $100,000. 
 
Work Programs – refers to capital project work generally performed by department or contracted 
resources and funded annually.  These programs shall be included as items in the CIP. 
 
Minor Capital – Refers to items that, although capital in nature, do not meet the above definitions 
of a project or acquisition, or of a system or network or items.  Minor capital items should be 
included in the Town’s annual operating budget. 
 
Operating costs – Refers the ongoing annual costs associated with a capital project or acquisition.  
The Town shall identify the estimated annual operating cost impact (net increase or decrease) 
related to a project when those operating cost impact to the Town is estimated to be $25,000 or 
greater. 

 
Project Funding Sources 
 

Debt Financing – Projects or acquisitions to be funded wholly or partially with debt issued by the 
Town of Brunswick should have a cost to the Town of at least of $325,000 and a life expectancy 
of five years or greater.  However, the Town Council may authorize the issuance of debt for 
projects and acquisitions that have a cost to the Town of at least $100,000.  Debt shall never be 
issued for a term longer than the life expectancy of the project or acquisition. 
 
General Revenues – Projects or acquisitions funded from general revenues or property taxation.  
Annual funding from this source should represent 4-7% of the total operating budget. 
 
Fund Balances – Projects to be funded with fund balances shall be those that meet the purpose 
and intent of the fund.  Funding from the unassigned general fund balance should be consistent 
with the Town’s General Fund Policy.  
 
Reserves – Projects to be funded from reserves should be those that meet the purpose and intent 
of the reserve. 
 
Non-Town Sources – Projects to be funded from non-town sources should meet the restrictions 
requirements of the funding provider. 

 
  



 

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\Documents\CIP Policy.docx 

 
Page 4 of 4 

Vehicles and Annual Work Programs 
 
Vehicles in the CIP - shall be listed in one of two categories: 
 

1. Annual Replacement Program - Replacement funds, established for all departments owning 
vehicles, to be funded annually through the municipal budget.  The replacement funds will be 
used to fund replacement of vehicles with a life expectancy of less than 15 years and a cost of 
less than $325,000.  The funds will also be used to replace the equipment that is an integral 
part of the vehicle.   

 
2. Stand Alone Consideration – Vehicles that meet the definition of a capital item, are eligible 

for stand-alone consideration in the CIP as follows: 
 

 Replacement vehicles with a life expectancy of 15 years or greater and a cost in 
excess of $325,000.  (e.g. fire engine) 

 New vehicles are defined as those that expand the service capacity of the department, 
program, or function.  (e.g. new plow truck required as the result of new or expanded 
plow routes) 

 
Work Programs in the CIP - will be established for the public works and school departments.  These 
programs will be funded annually through the municipal budget.  The public works department work 
programs shall include: 

 
 Road Construction/Reconstruction 
 Sidewalk Construction/Reconstruction 
 Road Resurfacing 

 
 
Projects Not in the CIP 
 
The Town recognizes that certain projects will be proposed by or to the Town Council that are not 
included in the adopted CIP.  Nothing prevents the Town Council from considering or funding those 
projects.  However, prior to funding, the Town should consider the impact those projects have on the 
Town’s ability to finance and operate the projects included in its adopted CIP. 
 
Staff to the CIP Committee 
 
The CIP Committee shall be staffed by the Town Manager, Finance Director and other staff they deem 
appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposed to Council:  February 19, 2013 
Adopted by Council:    


	mr a on line only
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr c schedulr_20130214111539
	mr c Change orders as of 2-12-13
	All Prime Contract Change Orders

	mr d yes
	mr d Feb 13 memo regarding quiet zones
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	mr d NEWFebruary 13  memo regarding train idling
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	16 yes
	16 spec app_20130213145253
	17 yes
	17 AB Memo on VRB Jurisdiction TC version
	February 13, 2013
	To:  Brunswick Town Council
	Gary Brown, Town Manager
	From:  Anna Breinich, AICP and Pat Scully
	Subject: Village Review Zone Amendment Update:  Jurisdiction Alternatives
	The Planning Board and Village Review Board have met twice in joint workshops regarding the review and rewrite of the Zoning Ordinance, Section 216, Village Review Overlay Zone (VRZ), in particular, the review and approval of demolitions in the VRZ.  ...
	A number of key Village Review Zone (VRZ) ordinance elements were discussed at the January 29th joint workshop of the Planning Board and Village Review Board in order to provide staff guidance in developing a concept draft.  Those key elements include...
	As staff began this task, it became evident that a very key component is the question of geographic and substantive jurisdiction of the Village Review Board as it will influence all other ordinance sections.  A follow-up joint workshop was held Februa...
	Based on our work to date, staff identified a few alternatives:
	1. Keep Village Review Board jurisdiction as is, both geographic and substantive, including jurisdiction of demolitions, with improved review criteria.
	2. Same as Option 1, but expand the Village Review Board jurisdiction geographically as suggested in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan (include the west side of Maine Street between Pleasant Street and Bath Road/Noble Street).
	3.  Same as Option 1, but alter VRB jurisdiction to apply only to the portion of the existing or expanded VRZ that is designated as an historic sub-district.
	4. Change the Village Review Board’s jurisdiction to make it more of an Historic Preservation Review Board with jurisdiction over all MHPC designated contributing properties within the Town's three National Register listed Historic Districts, National...
	5.  Same as Option 4, but limited geographically to the existing or expanded Village Review Zone.
	The preferred alternative chosen by Planning Board and Village Review Board is #2, which keeps VRB substantive jurisdiction as is and expands the geographic jurisdiction as recommended in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.
	Prior to staff drafting ordinance language, we respectfully request Town Council's consideration of the above alternatives and either concur with the Boards' preferred alternative or indicate your preference.
	Staff and members of both Boards will be available for questions at your meeting.

	17 VRZ Timetable
	17 A_20130214121316
	17 B_20130214121525
	17 C_20130214121800
	17 D_20130214121955
	18 yes
	18 letter perryman_20130213151238
	19 yes
	19 Brunswick Executive Airport TIF District Narrative_TC_02192013
	19 Brunswick Landing TIF District Narrative_TC_02192013
	ca a yes
	ca a Feb 4 2013 min
	ca b yes
	ca b pejscot_20130213145339
	ca c yes
	ca c CIP Policy 021913
	17 GB February 14 memo regarding the VRB.pdf
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK


